2003

James R. Russell and Raylene Russell v. J. Scott Lundberg : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Jurisdiction in this Court is proper under Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-2(j).

ISSUES PRESENTED

The issues presented for review are:

1. Whether the trial court erred as a matter of law in dismissing the Russell's claim for breach of fiduciary duty because no fiduciary duty was owed to them or the other trustors/borrowers.
2. Whether the court erred as a matter of law in ruling that the Lundberg defendants did not owe the Russells the duty to deal with them honestly or the duty to foreclose the trust deed in conformity with the Utah foreclosure statute.
3. Whether the court erred as a matter of law in ruling that the non-judicial foreclosure statute, Title 57, Chapter 1, Utah Code Ann., did not have the purpose of protecting the Russells and the other trustors/borrowers and that the Lundberg defendants did not violate this statute by charging costs that were inflated above the actual costs incurred by Scott Lundberg as the trustee.
4. Whether the court erred as a matter of law by ruling that Scott Lundberg was not a party to the trust deeds in which he was the original trustee in the Russell's case and either the original trustee or the substituted trustee for the putative class members; was not bound by the terms of the trust deeds, including the limitation to the actual costs incurred in the foreclosures; and he could not be held liable for breach of these contracts and breach

of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

5. Whether the court erred as a matter of law in ruling that the Lundberg defendants owed no duty to charge the foreclosure fees and only the actual costs incurred in the foreclosures as set forth in the regulations of FNMA, FHLMC, the VA, the FHA and the private servicing agreements.

6. Whether the court erred as a matter of law in ruling that the defendants did not unjustly enrich themselves, that no restitution of the costs in excess of the actual costs incurred by the defendants should be made, and that no restitution of the fees and costs charged in excess of the those allowed by the regulations and private servicing contracts should be made.

7. Whether the court erred as a matter of law in ruling that the Lundberg defendants did not engage in a constructive fraud against the Russells and the other homeowners in charging fees and costs in excess of the actual costs and fees allowed by the trust deeds, the regulations and private servicing agreements and the Utah foreclosure statute, Title 57, Chapter 1, Utah Code Ann.

8. Whether the court erred as a matter of law that the Lundberg defendants did not affirmatively defraud the Russells and the other trustors/borrowers by charging fees and costs in excess of the actual costs and fees allowed by the trust deeds, the regulations and private servicing agreements and the Utah foreclosure statute, Title 57, Chapter 1, Utah Code Ann.

9. Whether the court erred as a matter of law that the Lundberg defendants did not negligently misrepresent the amounts that could be legally charged for costs and fees of foreclosure to the Russells and the other trustors/borrowers by charging fees and costs in excess of the actual costs and fees allowed by the trust deeds, the regulations and private servicing agreements and the Utah foreclosure statute, Title 57, Chapter 1, Utah Code Ann.

10. Whether the court erred as a matter of law that the defendants were not engaged in a civil conspiracy.

11. Whether the court erred as a matter of law that the defendants did not violate the Utah Unfair Practices Act, Utah Code Ann. § 13-5-1, et seq.

12. Whether the court erred as a matter of law in dismissing the claim for punitive damages.

Each of these issues were defended by the Russells at the trial court. See Memorandums in Opposition to Motions of Lundberg and Backman Stewart. R. 196, 220, 719, 784, 914, 956, 960 and 1004. Since each of these issues were decided on summary judgment or on a motion to dismiss, the facts are viewed in a light most favorable to the Russells and no deference is given to the trial court's conclusions and the conclusions are reviewed for correctness. Blue Cross & Blue Shield v. State of Utah, 779 P.2d 634, 636-37 (Utah 1989).

**CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES, ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS WHOSE INTERPRETATION IS DETERMINATIVE OF THE
APPEAL OR OF CENTRAL IMPORTANCE TO THE APPEAL.**

Utah Code Ann. §§ 57-1-20 to 32. (Utah non-judicial power of sale foreclosure statute.)

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

II. NATURE OF THE CASE.

The plaintiffs are Utah home owners. Mr. Lundberg and Lundberg & Associates act as the foreclosing trustee in thousands of non-judicial foreclosures each year in Utah. They conducted three foreclosures on the plaintiffs' home. Backman Title Company and/or Backman-Stewart Title Services, Ltd. provide title work and a title insurance product known as a "trustee's sale guarantee" to the Lundberg defendants for each of the foreclosures. Canyon Anderson is the president of Backman Title Company who negotiated Backman's contract with the Lundberg defendants. Rodney Services Company is a corporation created by Scott Lundberg and owned by him and his children.

The Lundberg defendants are limited by the regulations of FNMA, FHLMC, the VA and the FHA to a certain amount, typically \$550.00 to \$650.00, for non-judicial foreclosure fees. Mr. Lundberg was limited to the same amount of fees by servicing agreements with mortgage servicing companies and lenders who hire him to act as the foreclosing trustee. In the case of the Russells, the foreclosure fees were limited by a servicing agreement to the same amount allowed by FNMA regulations. These same regulations and servicing agreements limited the amount that could be charged for foreclosure costs to the actual costs incurred in each foreclosure.

Utah Code Ann. § 57-1-21, et. seq., also limited the costs that could be charged by a

trustee to the actual costs incurred. The Russells trust deed, which was a standard FNMA trust deed, also limited the costs that could be charged to the actual costs incurred.

The Lundberg defendants used various methods to enhance the amount that they charged in each of the thousands of foreclosures, including the three foreclosures on the Russell's home, to an amount above those allowed by the regulations, the servicing contracts, the trust deeds and the Utah foreclosure statute. These methods focused on charging inflated costs which were substantially above the actual costs incurred by the Lundberg defendants. These inflated costs included:

- a. The payment of costs for posting of notices of trustee's sales that were almost twice the amount charged Lundberg by the persons posting the notices;
- b. The payment of inflated costs to the Intermountain Commercial Record, and possibly other newspapers, for publishing the notices of trustee's sales and the kickback of portions of the inflated costs to the Lundberg defendants; and
- c. The payment of premiums for title work, including the trustee sale guarantees, with the kickback of up to 30% of these premiums to the Lundberg defendants.

III. COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS IN TRIAL COURT.

The trial court dismissed all fifteen of the Russell's causes of action over a series of orders.¹ The orders are:

¹ All fifteen causes of action applied to the Lundberg defendants, including Rodney Services. The fifth, sixth, eighth, thirteenth, fourteenth and fifteenth causes of action were directed towards the Backman-Stewart defendants.

1. Memorandum Decision entered September 30, 2002 and consequent order of dismissal and partial summary judgment of October 30, 2002 and October 16, 2002. The decision was based upon the Motion for Partial Summary Judgment of the Lundberg defendants and the Motion to Dismiss of the Backman-Stewart defendants. The Lundberg Partial Summary Judgment dismissed the first (breach of fiduciary duty), second (constructive fraud), third (breach of contract) and fourth (breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing) causes of action with prejudice. The Backman-Stewart Order of Dismissal dismissed the fifth (restitution-mistake of fact), sixth (restitution-mistake of law) and thirteenth (civil conspiracy) causes of action without prejudice (subsequently dismissed with prejudice by the Order of November 4, 2003).

2. Memorandum Decision entered August 14, 2003 and resulting summary judgment and judgment on the pleadings of September 8, 2003 on behalf of the Lundberg defendants and Rodney Services and summary judgment for Backman-Stewart defendants of October 1, 2003. The Lundberg summary judgment dismissed the first four causes of action with prejudice against Rodney Services. It also dismissed the fifth (restitution-mistake of fact), sixth (restitution-mistake of law), seventh (tortious payment of money), eighth (unjust enrichment), ninth (wrongful collection), tenth (liability for intended consequences), eleventh (affirmative fraud), twelfth (negligent misrepresentation), thirteenth (civil conspiracy), fourteenth (Utah Unfair Practices Act), and fifteenth (punitive damages) causes of action with prejudice against the Lundberg defendants, including Rodney

Services.² The Backman-Stewart summary judgment dismissed the eighth, fourteenth and fifteenth causes of action with prejudice.

3. Order of Dismissal with Prejudice of November 4, 2003. This order dismissed the fifth, sixth, and thirteenth causes of action against the Backman-Stewart defendants with prejudice.

III. STATEMENT OF FACTS.

A. Loan on the Russell's home and foreclosures.

1. On August 8, 1997, Mr. and Mrs. Russell entered into a mortgage on their home. Among the documents that they executed were an Adjustable Rate Note, with a Rider B, and a Deed of Trust, copies of which are attached to the Complaint as Exhibit "A" thereto. R.29. Para. 4, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002 (incorporating allegations of Russell's Complaint). R.124.

2. Lundberg was appointed the original trustee under the terms of the trust deed. Para. 5, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.124. The Loan was sold to another lender and Lundberg continued to serve as the trustee after the sale. Id. at para. 7.

3. The Russells defaulted under the terms of the loan documents and foreclosure was commenced by the Lundberg defendants as trustee under the Deed of Trust. Para. 8 & 9, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002 (incorporating

² The order also denied the motion for class certification of the Russells.

allegations of Russell's Complaint). R.125.

4. Mr. Lundberg, as the trustee under the trust deed, set the Russell's home for sale. Para. 10, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.125.

5. Mr. and Mrs. Russell cured the default on or about April 23, 1998 by paying the missed payments on the mortgage, interest, and the fees and costs charged to the beneficiary by the Lundberg defendants. Para. 11, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.126. This payment included the following monies, as the foreclosure fees and costs billed to the lender by the Lundberg defendants:

A.	Trustee sale guarantee	\$767.00
B.	Recording of Substitution of Trustee	10.00
C.	Recording of Notice of Default	12.00
D.	Certified mail	93.00
E.	Attorneys fees	425.00
F.	Publication of Notice of Sale	83.07
G.	Posting of Notice of Sale	40.00
H.	Recording of Cancellation of Notice of Default	<u>12.00</u>
		\$1,442.07

See response to para. 12 of the Complaint in Answers of Lundberg and Rodney Services.

R.51 and R.76. See also Lundberg letter of September 14, 2001. R.247.

6. Mr. and Mrs. Russell again defaulted on their mortgage and another foreclosure was commenced by the Lundberg defendants as trustee under the Deed of Trust. Para. 12 & 13, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002 (incorporating allegations of Russell's Complaint). R.126.

7. Mr. Lundberg, as the trustee under the trust deed, set the Russells' home for

sale. Para. 14, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.126.

8. Mr. and Mrs. Russell cured the second default on or about August 3, 1999 by paying the missed payments on the mortgage, interest, and the fees and costs charged to the beneficiary by the Lundberg defendants. Para. 15, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.126. This payment included the following monies, as the foreclosure fees and costs billed to the lender by the Lundberg defendants:

A.	Trustee sale guarantee	\$760.00
B.	Recording of Notice of Default	10.00
D.	Certified mail	62.00
E.	Attorneys fees	550.00
F.	Publication of Notice of Sale	115.00
G.	Posting of Notice of Sale	40.00
H.	Recording of Cancellation of Notice of Default	<u>10.00</u>
		\$1,547.00

See response to para. 14 of the Complaint in Answers of Lundberg and Rodney Services. R.52 and R.76. See also Lundberg letter of September 14, 2001. R.247.

9. Mr. and Mrs. Russell defaulted a third time under the terms of the loan documents and another foreclosure was commenced by the Lundberg defendants as trustee under the Deed of Trust. Para. 16 & 17, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002 (incorporating allegations of Russell's Complaint). R.126 & 127.

10. Mr. Lundberg, as the trustee under the trust deed, set the Russells' home for sale. Para. 18, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.127.

11. Mr. and Mrs. Russell cured the default on or about November 3, 2000 by paying the missed payments on the mortgage, interest, and the fees and costs charged to the

lender by the Lundberg defendants. Para. 19, Lundberg Mem. in Spt. of Summary Judgment of Mar. 19, 2002. R.127. This payment included the following monies, as the foreclosure fees and costs billed to the lender by the Lundberg defendants:

A.	Trustee sale guarantee	\$757.00
B.	Recording of Notice of Default	10.00
D.	Certified mail	43.00
E.	Attorneys fees	550.00
F.	Publication of Notice of Sale	143.40
G.	Posting of Notice of Sale	65.00
H.	Recording of Cancellation of Notice of Default	<u>10.00</u>
		\$1,578.40

See response to para. 16 of the Complaint in Answers of Lundberg and Rodney Services.

R.52 and R.77. See also Lundberg letter of September 14, 2001. R.247.

B. The foreclosure business of the Lundberg defendants and the Backman-Stewart defendants.

12. The Lundberg defendants conduct several thousand trust deed foreclosures each year against Utah home owners such as the Russells. See Answers of Lundberg and Rodney Services to paragraphs 18 & 30 of Complaint. R.53, 56, 78 &80.

13. Most of the home mortgages that are foreclosed by the Lundberg defendants fall under the rules and regulations of the Veterans Administration (“VA”), the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”), or under non-mortgage insured loans, called conventional loans. See Answers of Lundberg and Rodney Services to paragraph 30 of Complaint. R.56 & R.80.

14. The VA, FHA, and lenders and loan servicers of conventional loans have

guidelines and regulations that limit the amount that the Lundberg defendants can charge for trustee's fees and foreclosure costs. See Answers of Lundberg and Rodney Services to paragraph 30 of Complaint. R.56 & R.80.³ These regulations also limit the costs that can be charged to the actual costs incurred by the trustee. Id.

15. Lundberg handled the three foreclosures on the Russells' home pursuant to an agreement with Aames Capital Corp. ("Aames"), the servicer of the Russells' mortgage, a copy of which is attached to the Russell's Addendum of Facts. R.963. Lundberg also foreclosed the Russell's home pursuant to a letter entitled "Aames Attorney Performance Expectations" also attached to the Addendum. R.963.

16. According to the Aames contract, Lundberg could only charge the fees and costs in the Russells' foreclosures allowed by FNMA. Para. 2 of Agreement. R.963

17. Attached to the Addendum is a copy of The National Mortgage Servicer's Reference Directory, produced in discovery by Lundberg, that sets forth the fees and costs allowed by FNMA, FHLMC, the VA and FHA. R.919. See also R.236-243. Only the reasonable out-of-pocket costs; i.e. the actual costs incurred, are allowed by FNMA. FNMA does not allow overhead expenses of the trustee, secretarial charges, notary fees, postage, photocopying charges, and certified copy charges. The trustee is not allowed to charge the

³ The fees were between \$450.00 and \$650.00. See fee charts. Dennis A. Jankowski, The National Mortgage Servicer's Reference Directory, Vernon Enterprises (17th Ed.), p. 1-22 & 1-23 FNMA fee chart, p. 2-14 & 2-15 FHLMC fee chart, p. 3-83 VA fee chart, p. 4-11 - 4-13, HUD (FHA) fee chart. R. 236-243.

borrower, such as the Russells, more to reinstate the loan than the amount allowed by FNMA. Id. at I-21. R.922.⁴

18. Lundberg wrote a summary of Utah foreclosure law published in The National Mortgage Servicer's Reference Directory. It is attached to the Russell Addendum of Facts. R.923. In his summary, Mr. Lundberg sets out the "allowable fees" under Utah foreclosure law. He writes "[t]he lender may recover fees, costs and advances provided they are reasonable, actually incurred and permitted by the documents." [Emphasis added.] Id. R.927.

19. Lundberg knew that he was proscribed from charging the Russells for the artificially inflated posting and publishing costs. See Reference Directory. R.927. Lundberg knew that he could charge only the actual costs of the TSG's to him. He could not keep the kickbacks or commissions paid to him for the TSG business from the title company. Id. The trust deed prohibited him from charging more for these costs than he actually incurred. FNMA prohibited him from doing so. The Utah foreclosure statute prohibited from doing so. He knew it and wrote in his summary for all other Utah foreclosure trustees to read that they had to limit their charges to the "actual costs" incurred and "the costs allowed by the trust deed." Id.

C. Excess charges.

1. Rodney Services Company.

⁴ FHLMC, VA, FHA have similar restrictions in foreclosures of their trust deeds.

20. Rodney Services was created by Scott Lundberg in May, 2000. Maren L. Dalton Aff. at para. 4&5. R.655.⁵

21. Mr. Lundberg owned 89% of Rodney Services and his son, Derek, owned 11%. After this lawsuit was filed, Mr. Lundberg changed the ownership of Rodney to his children with 12.5% each and his wife, Laurie, with 25%. Dalton Aff. at para. 5. R.655.

22. Mr. Lundberg claims to have not received any compensation from Rodney. However, he admits to receiving the profits of Rodney. Lundberg Aff. of April 22, 2003, at para. 7. R.663.

23. Rodney is located in the same building as Lundberg's foreclosure firm. Compare the addresses of Rodney and Lundberg on the invoice attached to the Opp. Mem. to March 12, 2003 Motion of Rodney Services as Exhibit "C" thereto. R.772. The building is owned by Mr. Lundberg.

2. Excess charges for posting of foreclosure notices.

24. Mr. Lundberg charged the Russells \$40.00 for the posting of the notices in each of the first two foreclosures. Response to interrogatory number 15, attached to the Opp. Mem. to March 12, 2003 Motion of Rodney Services as Exhibit "B" thereto. R.759.

⁵ Ms. Dalton claims to be the president and managing officer of Rodney Services. She is one of the daughters of Mr. Lundberg. Prior to the existence of Rodney, she posted the Russells' house in the 1998 foreclosure and billed for her services in her maiden name, Maren Lundberg. See computer printouts (p.3, line 7) of foreclosure activity on the Russells' house produced by Lundberg in response to requests for production, April 6, 1998 entry, which printouts are attached to plaintiff's Opp. Mem. to March 12, 2003 Motion of Rodney Services as Exhibit "A" thereto. R.736.

25. Both of these foreclosures were completed before Rodney was formed. Dalton Aff. para. 13 & 16. R.657 & 658.

26. Rodney charged the Russells \$65.00 to post the notices in the third foreclosure. Response to interrogatory number 15, attached to the Opp. Mem. to March 12, 2003 Motion of Rodney Services as Exhibit "B" thereto. R.759. See also Rodney invoice # 501 attached to the Opp. Mem. to March 12, 2003 Motion of Rodney Services as Exhibit "C" thereto. R.772.

27. Rodney paid Mr. Lundberg's wife, Laurie Lundberg, \$35.00 to post the foreclosures. See Rodney statement, history of payment and Check # 1150, attached to the Opp. Mem. to March 12, 2003 Motion of Rodney Services as Exhibit "D" thereto. R.774 & 775. Thus, Rodney was charging \$30.00 more to post houses than it was paying the people who posted them. This overcharge was a practice used by Rodney in all foreclosures. Dalton Aff. para. 7. R.656. Prior to the formation of Rodney, Lundberg was charging \$5.00 to \$10.00 more than he was paying the persons posting the homes on which he was foreclosing. See charges to the Russells for the first two foreclosures, above.

28. Lundberg was paid up to \$550.00 as his fee for each foreclosure on the Russell's home. See charges to the Russells in para. 5, 8 and 11, above. He was paid up to \$650.00 as his fee for handling other foreclosures. See Reference Directory, R.236-243. The \$550.00 charged on the Russell's foreclosures was the maximum amount allowed by the Aames servicing agreement. See para. 16 & 17, above. Managing the posting of

foreclosures was part of the services for which Mr. Lundberg was paid his trustee's fee. Prior to the creation of Rodney, Mr. Lundberg's employees performed the simple task of sending a copy of the foreclosure notice to the person posting the notice as part of their work for which Lundberg was paid the \$550.00 - \$650.00. After Rodney was formed, Lundberg's employees took the same step of sending the notice, but it was sent to Rodney.

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