2003

James R. Russell and Raylene Russell v. J. Scott Lundberg : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

Rule 56. Summary judgment.

(c) Motion and proceedings thereon. The motion, memoranda and affidavits shall be in accordance with Rule 7. The judgment sought shall be rendered if the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. A summary judgment, interlocutory in character, may be rendered on the issue of liability alone although there is a genuine issue as to the amount of damages.

(e) Form of affidavits; further testimony; defense required. Supporting and opposing affidavits shall be made on personal knowledge, shall set forth such facts as would be admissible in evidence, and shall show affirmatively that the affiant is competent to testify to the matters stated therein. Sworn or certified copies of all papers or parts thereof referred to in an affidavit shall be attached thereto or served therewith. The court may permit affidavits to be supplemented or opposed by depositions, answers to interrogatories, or further affidavits. When a motion for summary judgment is made and supported as provided in this rule, an adverse party may not rest upon the mere allegations or denials of the pleadings, but the response, by affidavits or as otherwise provided in this rule, must set forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial. Summary judgment, if appropriate, shall be entered against a party failing to file such a response.

Rule 1.7. Conflict of interest: general rule.

1. (a) A lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation of that client will be directly adverse to another client, unless:

(1) The lawyer reasonably believes the representation will not adversely affect the relationship with the other client; and

(2) Each client consents after consultation.

(b) A lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation of that client may be materially limited by the lawyer's responsibilities to another client or to a third person or by the lawyer's own interest, unless:

(1) The lawyer reasonably believes the representation will not be adversely affected; and

(2) Each client consents after consultation. When representation of multiple clients in a single matter is undertaken, the consultation shall include explanation to each client of the implications of the common representation and the advantages and risks involved.

15 U.S.C. § 13. Discrimination in price, services, or facilities

2. Release date: 2004-05-18

(a) Price; selection of customers

It shall be unlawful for any person engaged in commerce, in the course of such commerce, either directly or indirectly, to discriminate in price between different purchasers of commodities of like grade and quality, where either or any of the purchases involved in such discrimination are in commerce, where such commodities are sold for use, consumption, or resale within the United States or any Territory thereof or the District of Columbia or any insular possession or other place under the jurisdiction of the United States, and where the effect of such discrimination may be substantially to lessen competition or tend to create a monopoly in any line of commerce, or to injure, destroy, or prevent competition with any person who either grants or knowingly receives the benefit of such discrimination, or with customers of either of them: Provided, That nothing herein contained shall prevent differentials which make only due allowance for differences in the cost of manufacture, sale, or delivery resulting from the differing methods or quantities in which such commodities are to such purchasers sold or delivered: Provided, however, That the Federal Trade Commission may, after due investigation and hearing to all interested parties, fix and establish quantity limits, and revise the same as it finds necessary, as to particular commodities or classes of commodities, where it finds that available purchasers in greater quantities are so few as to render differentials on account thereof unjustly discriminatory or promotive of monopoly in any line of commerce; and the foregoing shall then not be construed to permit differentials based on differences in quantities greater than those so fixed and established: And provided further, That nothing herein contained shall prevent persons engaged in selling goods, wares, or merchandise in commerce from selecting their own customers in bona fide transactions and not in restraint of trade: And provided further, That nothing herein contained shall prevent price changes from time to time where in response to changing conditions affecting the market for or the marketability of the goods concerned, such as but not limited to actual or imminent deterioration of perishable goods, obsolescence of seasonal goods, distress sales under court process, or sales in good faith in discontinuance of business in the goods concerned.

(b) Burden of rebutting prima-facie case of discrimination

Upon proof being made, at any hearing on a complaint under this section, that there has been discrimination in price or services or facilities furnished, the burden of rebutting the prima-facie case thus made by showing justification shall be upon the person charged with a violation of this section, and unless justification shall be affirmatively shown, the Commission is authorized to issue an order terminating the discrimination: Provided, however, That nothing herein contained shall prevent a seller rebutting the prima-facie case thus made by showing that his lower price or the furnishing of services or facilities to any purchaser or purchasers was made in good faith to meet an equally low price of a competitor, or the services or facilities furnished by a competitor.

(c) Payment or acceptance of commission, brokerage, or other compensation

It shall be unlawful for any person engaged in commerce, in the course of such commerce, to pay or grant, or to receive or accept, anything of value as a commission, brokerage, or other compensation, or any allowance or discount in lieu thereof, except for services rendered in connection with the sale or purchase of goods, wares, or merchandise, either to the other party to such transaction or to an agent, representative, or other intermediary therein where such intermediary is acting in fact for or in behalf, or is subject to the direct or indirect control, of any party to such transaction other than the person by whom such compensation is so granted or paid.

(d) Payment for services or facilities for processing or sale

It shall be unlawful for any person engaged in commerce to pay or contract for the payment of anything of value to or for the benefit of a customer of such person in the course of such commerce as compensation or in consideration for any services or facilities furnished by or through such customer in connection with the processing, handling, sale, or offering for sale of any products or commodities manufactured, sold, or offered for sale by such person, unless such payment or consideration is available on proportionally equal terms to all other customers competing in the distribution of such products or commodities.

(e) Furnishing services or facilities for processing, handling, etc.

It shall be unlawful for any person to discriminate in favor of one purchaser against another purchaser or purchasers of a commodity bought for resale, with or without processing, by contracting to furnish or furnishing, or by contributing to the furnishing of, any services or facilities connected with the processing, handling, sale, or offering for sale of such commodity so purchased upon terms not accorded to all purchasers on proportionally equal terms.

(f) Knowingly inducing or receiving discriminatory price

It shall be unlawful for any person engaged in commerce, in the course of such commerce, knowingly to induce or receive a discrimination in price which is prohibited by this section.

13-5-1. Short title.

This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Unfair Practices Act."

13-5-3. Unlawful discriminations -- Burden of proof -- Taking or offering commissions -- Payments for benefit of customers -- Discrimination among purchasers -- Inducing discriminations.

(1) (a) It is unlawful for any person engaged in commerce, in the course of such commerce, either directly or indirectly, to discriminate in price between different purchasers of commodities of like grade and quality, where either or any of the purchasers involved in such discrimination are in commerce, where such commodities are sold for use, consumption, or resale within the state and where the effect of such discrimination may be substantially to lessen competition or tend to create a monopoly in any line of commerce, or to injure, destroy, or prevent competition with any person who either grants or knowingly receives the benefit of such discrimination, or with customers of either of them.

(b) Nothing in this chapter shall prevent:

(i) differentials which make only due allowance for differences in the cost of manufacture, sale, or delivery resulting from the different methods or quantities in which such commodities are to such purchasers sold or delivered;

(3) It is unlawful for any person engaged in commerce in the course of such commerce, to pay or grant, or to receive or accept, anything of value as a commission, brokerage, or other compensation, or any allowance or discount in lieu thereof, except for and not exceeding the actual cost of such services rendered in connection with the sale or purchase of goods, wares, or merchandise.

13-5-17. Policy of act.

The Legislature declared that the purpose of this act is to safeguard the public against the creation or perpetuation of monopolies and to foster and encourage competition, by prohibiting unfair and discriminatory practices by which fair and honest competition is destroyed or prevented. This act shall be liberally construed that its beneficial purposes may be subserved.

31A-23-404 Sharing commissions.

(1) (a) Except as provided in Subsection 31A-15-103(3), a licensee under this chapter or an insurer may only pay consideration or reimburse out-of-pocket expenses to a person if the licensee knows that the person is licensed under this chapter to act as an agent or broker in Utah as to the particular type of insurance.

(b) A person may only accept commission compensation or other compensation as an agent, broker, or consultant that is directly or indirectly the result of any insurance transaction if that person is licensed under this chapter to act as an agent or broker as to the particular type of insurance.

(2) (a) Except as provided in Section 31A-23-301, a consultant may not pay or receive any commission or other compensation that is directly or indirectly the result of any insurance transaction.

(b) A consultant may share a consultant fee or other compensation received for consulting services performed within Utah only with another consultant licensed under this chapter, and only to the extent that the other consultant contributed to the services performed.

(3) This section does not prohibit the payment of renewal commissions to former licensees under this chapter, former Title 31, Chapter 17, or their successors in interest under a deferred compensation or agency sales agreement.

(4) This section does not prohibit compensation paid to or received by an individual for referral of a potential customer that seeks to purchase or obtain an opinion or advice on an insurance product if:

(a) the person is not licensed to sell insurance;

(b) the person sells or provides opinions or advice on the product; and

(c) the compensation does not depend on whether the referral results in a purchase or sale.

(5) In selling any policy of title insurance, no sharing of commissions under Subsection (1) may occur if it will result in an unlawful rebate, or in compensation in connection with controlled business, or in payment of a forwarding fee or finder's fee. A person may share compensation for the issuance of a title insurance policy only to the extent that he contributed to the search and examination of the title or other services connected with it.

(6) This section does not apply to bail bond agents or bail enforcement agents as defined in Section 31A-35-102.

57-1-19. Trust deeds -- Definitions of terms.

As used in Sections 57-1-20 through 57-1-36:

(1) "Beneficiary" means the person named or otherwise designated in a trust deed as the person for whose benefit a trust deed is given, or his successor in interest.

(4) "Trustee" means a person to whom title to real property is conveyed by trust deed, or his successor in interest.

57-1-20. Transfers in trust of real property -- Purposes -- Effect.

Transfers in trust of real property may be made to secure the performance of an obligation of the trustor or any other person named in the trust deed to a beneficiary. All right, title, interest and claim in and to the trust property acquired by the trustor, or the trustor's successors in interest, subsequent to the execution of the trust deed, shall inure to the trustee as security for the obligation or obligations for which the trust property is conveyed as if acquired before execution of the trust deed.

57-1-21. Trustees of trust deeds -- Qualifications.

(1) (a) The trustee of a trust deed shall be:

(i) any active member of the Utah State Bar who maintains a place within the state where the trustor or other interested parties may meet with the trustee to:

(A) request information about what is required to reinstate or payoff the obligation secured by the trust deed;

(B) deliver written communications to the lender as required by both the trust deed and by law;

(C) deliver funds to reinstate or payoff the loan secured by the trust deed; or

(D) deliver funds by a bidder at a foreclosure sale to pay for the purchase of the property secured by the trust deed.

(ii) any depository institution as defined in Section 7-1-103, or insurance company authorized to do business and actually doing business in Utah under the laws of Utah or the United States;

(iii) any corporation authorized to conduct a trust business and actually conducting a trust business in Utah under the laws of Utah or the United States;

(iv) any title insurance company or agency that:

(A) holds a certificate of authority or license under Title 31A, Insurance Code, to conduct insurance business in the state;

(B) is actually doing business in the state; and

(C) maintains a bona fide office in the state;

(v) any agency of the United States government; or

(vi) any association or corporation that is licensed, chartered, or regulated by the Farm Credit Administration or its successor.

(b) For purposes of this Subsection (1), a person maintains a bona fide office within the state if that person maintains a physical office in the state:

(i) that is open to the public;

(ii) that is staffed during regular business hours on regular business days; and

- (iii) at which a trustor of a trust deed may in person:
 - (A) request information regarding a trust deed; or
 - (B) deliver funds, including reinstatement or payoff funds.
- (c) Subsection (1) is not applicable to a trustee of a trust deed existing prior to May 14, 1963, nor to any agreement that is supplemental to that trust deed.
- (d) The amendments in Chapter 209, Laws of Utah 2002, to this Subsection (1) apply only to a trustee that is appointed on or after May 6, 2002.
- (2) The trustee of a trust deed may not be the beneficiary of the trust deed, unless the beneficiary is qualified to be a trustee under Subsection (1)(a)(ii), (iii), (v), or (vi).
- (3) The power of sale conferred by Section 57-1-23 may only be exercised by the trustee of a trust deed if the trustee is qualified under Subsection (1)(a)(i) or (iv).
- (4) A trust deed with an unqualified trustee or without a trustee shall be effective to create a lien on the trust property, but the power of sale and other trustee powers under the trust deed may be exercised only if the beneficiary has appointed a qualified successor trustee under Section 57-1-22.

57-1-21.5. Trustees of trust deeds -- Duties -- Prohibited conduct -- Penalties.

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